NOTTINGHAMSHIRE
Police & Crime Panel

Minutes of the meeting held on Monday 18 March 2024 at 2:00pm at

County Hall, West Bridgford, Nottinghamshire

Members present:

Christine Goldstraw (Chair)
Councillor David Ellis (Vice-Chair)

Executive Mayor Andy Abrahams
Councillor Teresa Cullen

Lesley Dalby

Councillor Boyd Elliott

Suma Harding

Councillor Rob Inglis

Councillor Mike Introna
Councillor Sajid Mohammed
Councillor Madelaine Richardson
Councillor Paul Taylor

Bob Vaughan-Newton

Councillor John Wilmott
Councillor Linda Woodings

Host authority officers present

Jo Toomey
Mikolaj Gessler

Others present

Independent co-opted member
Gedling Borough Council

Mansfield District Council
Broxtowe Borough Council
Independent co-opted member
Nottinghamshire County Council
Independent co-opted member
Rushcliffe Borough Council
Nottinghamshire County Council
Nottingham City Council
Bassetlaw District Council

Newark & Sherwood District Council

Independent co-opted member
Ashfield District Council
Nottingham City Council

Democratic Services
Democratic Services

e Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) Caroline Henry

From the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner

e Michelle Buttery — Chief Executive

¢ Gillian Holder — Chief Financial Officer
e Dan Howitt — Head of Strategy and Performance

1. Minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2024

The Panel confirmed the minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2024 as a

correct record and they were signed by the Chair.

2. Apologies for absence

Ap
Ap
Ap

Ap



Apologies for absence were received from:

Executive Mayor Andy Abrahams, Mansfield District Council
Councillor Teresa Cullen, Broxtowe District Council

Lesley Dalby, Independent co-opted member

Councillor Boyd Elliott, Nottinghamshire County Council
Councillor Madelaine Richardson, Bassetlaw District Council

Declarations of interest
No interests were disclosed.

Police and Crime Commissioner’s update to the Panel on the decision of His
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services
(HMICFRS) to place Nottinghamshire Police under enhanced monitoring

The subject of this report arose after the publication of the agenda for the
meeting. The Chair accepted it as urgent business as it was in the public interest
for the Panel to discuss it at the earliest possible opportunity.

The Chief Executive of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC)
presented her report. It explained HMICFRS’ decision to place Nottinghamshire
Police under enhanced monitoring:

¢ HMICFRS conducted a PEEL inspection the Force between December
2023 and January 2024

e HMICFRS gave the Commissioner formal notice of its decision on Friday 8
March 2024 before publicly announcing it on Monday 11 March 2024

e HMICFRS found two accelerated causes of concern:

o The way the Force managed, supervised and carried out effective
investigations, and made sure victims got the support that they
needed

o There were not adequate processes, planning or governance
arrangements in place to monitor performance or identify areas
where improvement was required

¢ Enhanced monitoring, or ‘engage’ status meant HMICFRS would oversee
and support the Force in addressing its concerns

e Once HMICFRS’ had raised its concerns, the Commissioner began urgent
discussions with the Chief Constable and was encouraged by the actions
that were already in place

e The Chief Constable had engaged the wider policing family to identify good
practice in those areas to which concerns related

e To give the Commissioner, the Chief Constable had granted her team
access to operational meetings

¢ In addition to formal processes, the PCC was engaging in informal dialogue
with HMICFRS

e The Chief Constable issued a media release in response to the decision,
setting out actions already being taken including Operation Catalyst, which



would bring forward broader plans of the Chief Constable at an expedited
pace

e The PCC also issued a media release and added an item to her
accountability board on 12 March 2024, which was broadcast

e HMICFRS had invited the Commissioner and Chief Constable to its
Policing Performance and Oversight Group in mid-May where the Chief
Constable would present the improvement plan for feedback

e The Commissioner had asked the Chief Constable whether she had
sufficient budget to make the required improvements

Members of the Panel then discussed the report and asked questions of the
Commissioner.

Members learned that HMICFRS held a debrief with the Chief Constable and
Commissioner on 14 February 2024. The Commissioner confirmed that during the
debrief, the areas for improvement were not highlighted as the areas of concern
they turned out to be. During the debrief HMICFRS advised the Force that it would
publish the inspection report in May 2024. HMICFRS officially confirmed that the
Force would be subject to enhanced monitoring at 4pm on Friday 8 March 2024,
in advance of it issuing a public statement on Monday 11 March 2024. The
Commissioner stated she was surprised that the Force had moved to ‘engage’.

The Commissioner referred to exchanges between the Force and HMICFRS in
advance of 8 March 2024. Panel members asked about the nature of these
exchanges and any earlier opportunities to predict HMICFRS’ decision. The
Commissioner stated that the exchanges had related to some numbers quoted by
HMICFRS and actions taken by the Chief Constable following the inspection.

Members referred to previous Panel meetings at which the Commissioner had
confirmed she met regularly with the Chief Constable. The Commissioner was
asked whether, during any of those sessions, she had been given an indication of
anything serious arising from the inspection. The Commissioner stated that whilst
there was conversation about the issues that were highlighted, it was not
anticipated the Force would move into ‘engage’.

Panel members asked questions to clarify arrangements for the debrief. Members
wanted to know whether the inspectors provided informal feedback to the Chief
Constable before they left. Concern was expressed that the Commissioner may
not have been made aware of the issues until 14 February 2024. Members also
wanted to know about any immediate action taken to address the issues raised.
The Chief Constable had addressed some of the issues before the debrief.

The Panel asked about the Commissioner’s involvement in the inspection. She
confirmed that HMICFRS had interviewed her but at that point raised no issues of
immediate concern. Members noted that the debrief provided an opportunity for
HMICFRS to feed back to the force and Commissioner. In forming its view
HMICFRS triangulated data from fieldwork with other information it had collected.
Whilst there was general conversation about issues identified, they were not
expressed as accelerated causes of concern. Subsequent exchanges related to
the Force’s understanding of HMICFRS’ decision. These were followed by official
notification of HMICFRS' decision on 8 March 2024. Members asked what had



changed between 14 February 2024 and 8 March 2024 to cause the escalation in
concern.

Panel members asked whether there was a dispute about the inspection findings.
They referred to their experience where post-inspection exchanges were the point
at which all parties reached agreement and understanding of the outcome would
be reached. A date was being arranged for an operational briefing for Panel
members at which further detail would be shared.

Panel members also asked whether the Commissioner could have identified the
issue sooner through her own assurance arrangements. The Commissioner
stated that inspectors focused on an operational level, which differed to the
monitoring that she undertook. A question also explored about whether there were
missed opportunities to provide reassurance to inspectors which had led to
enhanced monitoring.

In addressing the questions and comments of the Panel, the Commissioner made
it clear that HMICFRS’ findings were not related to the Force’s handling of the
Nottingham attacks and the Valdo Calocane case.

Some concern was expressed about deteriorating performance, as the previous
PEEL inspection of the Force had identified its investigation of crime as ‘good’.
Members were advised that crime data integrity had not been identified as an
issue and clarification provided that concerns about investigating crime arose from
system data and its analysis.

Discussion turned to the ways in which the Commissioner scrutinised the Force
and the means through which that scrutiny could drive improvement. She stated
that she was stepping up the arrangements, which included taking advantage of
the enhanced access that had been granted by the Chief Constable. The
Commissioner explained that attendance at additional meetings would be
distributed amongst members of her team. Members asked, given the importance
of the issues raised during the inspection, whether attendance at the force’s
meetings was too important to delegate. The Panel was advised that there would
be too many meetings for the Commissioner to attend personally. Reassurance
was given that the meetings would be distributed to officers at an appropriate
level. While the Commissioner would be involved in meetings at a strategic level,
she would not attend operational meetings so that there could be no
misunderstanding about her reason for attendance.

Panel members asked whether there was budgetary provision to remedy the
issues and the availability of additional funding should it be required. While the
outcome of the inspection was unknown when the budget was set, members
noted that actions which were part of a wider programme of work and would help
address the issues were already encapsulated within the budget. This included
matters such as additional supervision. The Commissioner stated she had asked
the Chief Constable about additional funding. Members noted that the Chief
Constable was still compiling her plan, so it was not yet clear whether additional
resource would be required. The Commissioner added that she wanted to support
the Chief Constable and ensure that the right resources were in place.



The Commissioner was asked about her understanding of the Inspector’s
recommendations. In response, members were advised that the recommendation
regarding governance, processes and planning were already being addressed in
a wider programme of work the Chief Constable was undertaking. Members were
also informed that the recommendation regarding the management, supervision
and investigation of crime was about being able to evidence action that was
happening.

Panel members were interested in any elements of the Chief Constable’s action
plan that would be the responsibility of the Commissioner’s office. The Panel
noted that the Commissioner’s role was to scrutinise the plan and check that
progress was happening at an appropriate pace.

A question was asked about whether the outcome of the inspection raised any
concerns regarding the accuracy of the performance and insight report. A further
concern was raised, as reports presented to the Panel indicated good
performance, whilst the Inspectors had identified problems. The Commissioner
stated that the information that had been viewed by HMICFRS for the inspection
was different from the OPCC data that sat behind the performance and insight
report.

Several members also asked about previous assurances provided by the
Commissioner and how they could be confident in them given the inspection
highlighted the need for improved governance. Members wanted assurance about
the gravity with which the Commissioner was taking the issues that had been
highlighted by the inspection. The Commissioner stated that she was always
wanting to see Nottinghamshire Police get better, that she was taking the issues
seriously and was determined to hold the Force to account.

Members asked whether there were any performance indicators or insights
gained through the accountability board that might have helped identify the areas
of concern sooner and allowed for action. The Panel was advised that the Force
was not an outlier in the number of crimes recorded with specific outcomes and
that there was strong compliance with the Victims Code of Practice (VCOP). The
discrepancy in data was attributed to a performance bolt-on tool and the way in
which information was pulled through the system. When calibrated against other
systems, some concerns from a force perspective were allayed. The OPCC
highlighted the distinction between the quality of service being delivered and the
systems that were used to record action and assess compliance.

The Panel turned its attention to the Inspector’s findings about VCOP compliance
and victims not receiving updates. They asked how it related to the decrease in
VCOP compliance shown in the performance and insight report, included later in
the meeting’s agenda. The Commissioner was asked how she and the
accountability board was seeking assurance about the compliance statistics that
were being presented. Members were informed that this sat with the Force’s
victim and witness assurance group. The PCC also had her own partnership-
based oversight group which had been tracking indicators. Signed-off guidance on
VCOP from the Ministry of Justice was still awaited. The Panel noted
Nottinghamshire Police’s ambition to update victims in 21 days. The



Commissioner confirmed that she had sought assurance on this, stating that
many Forces updated victims in 28 days rather than 21.

Members also asked about 609 domestic abuse cases that were waiting to be
triaged. The Commissioner was asked if she had sought urgent assurance about
tackling this backlog and its current size.

The Commissioner was asked how long she expected the force to be subject to
enhanced monitoring. In response, she stated she had asked HMICFRS for an
indication and added that she would like the Force to be out of the enhanced
monitoring regime within a year. The Commissioner highlighted Operation
Catalyst, which was already in process, and the appetite to resolve the issues as
quickly as possible.

The Commissioner was asked whether the Inspector had highlighted any further
areas of concern in the organisation. The Commissioner reiterated that during the
debrief, whilst the areas of concern had been mentioned, it had not been with a
view to requiring urgent intervention. She added that the full report had yet to be
released and the Force had not been given any other areas on which to focus at
this time.

Update reports would be brought to the Panel periodically. The Chair also gave
the Commissioner an opportunity to highlight any areas where the Panel might be
able to provide support or assistance.

Action points

e The Commissioner to provide an update on the size of the backlog of
domestic abuse cases awaiting triage or assurance that it had been
addressed.

e Arrange an operational briefing for Panel members.

Resolved 2024/06

The Panel noted the update on the decision of His Majesty’s Inspectorate of
Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services to place Nottinghamshire Police
under enhanced monitoring.

Work programme

Members considered the report on the Panel’s work programme.

In response to a question raised, members noted an overview of the purpose of
the national best practice hub. The Home Office was in the processing of
identifying an authority to host the hub.

Resolved 2024/07

1. Members noted the contents of the Panel’s work programme.
2. That members note the update in respect of the Best Practice Hub.



3. That a sub-group be established by the Panel to produce the Annual Report
2023/24

4. That members note the update on the terms of office for the Panel’'s
Independent Co-opted Members.

5. That members note the dates for Panel meetings for the 2024/25 municipal
year.

Police and Crime Commissioner’s update report
The Police and Crime Commissioner’s update report was taken as read.

As this was the Commissioner’s final meeting before the election in May 2024,
she thanked her team, officers within the Force, the public who had helped inform
her work and members of the Panel for their challenge and support.

Members referred to the amalgamation of Operation Reacher teams with
neighbourhood policing. The Panel highlighted the importance of feeding back to
anyone who had reported incidents.

At its last meeting, the Commissioner told the Panel about a learning review of the
Valdo Calocane case by the National College of Policing. The PCC was due to
formally commission the review following agreement of terms of reference and
costings. She expected these would be finalised during the week commencing 18
March 2024.

The Commissioner confirmed that Safer Streets 5 funding would run to March
2025.

Members of the Panel noted ongoing fraud awareness activity. The
Nottinghamshire Fraud Partnership had produced a ‘Fraud Protect’ booklet. It was
also leading a ‘Spot the Red Flags of Fraud’ campaign. Council Tax bills included
fraud prevention information, reaching all households in Nottinghamshire. Events
were also being held to reach as wide an audience as possible, including coffee,
cake and chat events, and specific events run by Mencap.

Action points

e An update on rural crime to be provided at a future meeting of the Panel.

e An update on the impact of the integration of Operation Reacher teams into
neighbourhood policing and the effectiveness of the neighbourhood
policing teams.

Resolved 2024/08

Members noted the Commissioner’s update report.

Performance and insight report

The PCC’s Head of Strategy and Performance introduced the report. He

highlighted eight areas where performance was better than the baseline. Four
further areas reached their stretch targets. Data showed improvements in the



number of first-time entrants in the criminal justice system. The number of rape
offences resulting in a charge remained stronger than other areas. At the end of
the last period there had been an upturn in trust and confidence.

Members noted two areas where performance was showing a negative trend.
These were the volunteer workforce and the number of people killed and seriously
injured (KSI) on Nottinghamshire’s roads.

Members expressed concern about the increase in KSI incidents. The
Commissioner provided an update on actions that were already underway:

e A current campaign around the ‘fatal four’

e Deployment of a new reporting system that would help identify dangerous
driving hotspots

Use of ANPR cameras

Using designing out crime principles to design out dangerous roads
Operations Miramar and Blackfriars

Investment of income raised through speeding fines in road safety
initiatives

Members asked about the trust they could place in the accuracy of data
considering the findings of HMICFRS. Assurance work around data quality was
ongoing. Officers from the OPCC were attending Force data quality boards and
working with the Force’s data and crime recording registrar.

A member asked how extra officers deployed to support neighbourhood policing
were distributed. The Chief Constable had completed a needs review from which
she determined allocations.

Resolved 2024/09

Members noted the contents of the performance and insight report.

The meeting was closed at 4:05pm



